
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS

MAY 10, 2021

Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the governing body of the City of
Navasota will be held on the 10th of May, 2021 at 6:00 PM at the City Hall in the City
Council Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street, Navasota, Texas
77868, at which time the following subjects will be considered, to wit:

To watch the City Council meeting live please visit the City of Navasota's Youtube
here: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCltnx7BQt0TCIYJRiZ14g5w If you have any
questions during the meeting please email them to council@navasotatx.gov or text
936-825-5557. Please ensure to provide your full name and home address. If you
prefer to call-in please dial +13462487799 and enter Meeting ID: 709 770 2250 # To
Join Meeting virtually please click link below:https://zoom.us/j/7097702250

1. Call to Order.

2. Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance

3. Remarks of visitors: Any citizen may address the City Council on any matter.
Registration forms are available on the podium and/or table in the back of the city
council chambers. This form should be completed and delivered to the City
Secretary by 5:45 p.m. Please limit remarks to three minutes. The City Council will
receive the information, ask staff to look into the matter, or place the issue on a
future agenda. Topics of operational concerns shall be directed to the City
Manager.



4. Staff Report:

(a) Capital Improvement Project report;

(b) Introduction of the Artists in Residence;

(c) Recognize staff for Years of Service;

(d) First Responders Day;

(e) Update on Transportation Alternatives Program;

(f) Update on Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan;

(g) Proclamation for Peace Officer Week;

(h) Board and Commission update; and

(i) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community interests,
including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; information
regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials,
public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized
or sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community
events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be
attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent
threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has arisen after
the posting of the agenda.

5. Consideration and possible action on canvassing the returns for the May 1, 2021
City Election.

Consideración y posible acción sobre la búsqueda de los retornos para las
elecciones municipales del 1 de mayo de 2021.

6. Consideration and possible action on qualifying newly elected Council members to
Positions 4 and 5 and administer the Oaths of Office.

Consideración y posible acción sobre la calificación de los miembros recién elegidos
del Consejo a los Puestos 4 y 5 y administrar los Juramentos del Cargo.

7. Consideration and possible action on election of a Council member to serve as
Mayor.

8. Consideration and possible action on election of a Council member to serve as
Mayor Pro-Tem.

9. Presentation of the Capstone Project from the Bush School regarding capital
improvements over the past 15 years.

10. Presentation by Tim Gregg on Celebrating Navasota.

11. Consideration and possible action on Change Order No. 2 for the Railroad Street
2016 Flood CDBG - Disaster Recovery Grant.



12. Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 962-21,
amending Appendix A, Article A12.000, Public Library of the Code of Ordinances,
of the City of Navasota, Texas regarding fee schedules.

13. Consideration and possible action on appointments to boards and commissions.

14. Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 690-21, expressing opposition
to the proposed Senate Bill 10 and similar Legislation in the 87th Texas Legislature
to restrict the ability of local governments to advocate for their communities.

15. Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion and
vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by the Mayor
or City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent
Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of the
regular agenda.

Consent Items are:

A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the month of April 2021;
and

B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the month of April
2021;

16. Executive Session: The City Council shall meet in Executive Session as permitted
by Section 551.087, Texas Government Code, for the purpose of deliberation
regarding economic development negotiations with J & H Navasota Development,
LLC regarding a potential Development Agreement.

17. Reconvene in open session.

18. Consideration and possible action on Executive Session Item, Section 551.087,
Texas Government Code, regarding a Development Agreement with J & H
Navasota Development LLC.

19. Adjourn.

DATED THIS THE 5TH OF MAY, 2021

/BS/

BY: BRAD STAFFORD, CITY MANAGER



I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that the above notice of
meeting of the governing body of the CITY OF NAVASOTA, is a true and
correct copy of said notice and that I posted a true and correct copy of said
notice in the glass bulletin board, in the foyer, on the south side of the
Municipal Building as well as in the bulletin board on the north side of the
Municipal Building of the City of Navasota, Texas, a place convenient and
readily accessible to the general public at all times, and said notice was
posted on the 5th of May, 2021 at 03:39 PM and will remain posted
continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of said
meeting. Agendas may be viewed at www.navasotatx.gov.

The City Council reserves the right to convene in Executive Session at any
time deemed necessary for the consideration of confidential matters under
the Texas Government Code, Sections 551.071-551.084.

DATED THIS THE 5TH OF MAY, 2021

/SMH/

BY: SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY

THIS FACILITY IS WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE AND ACCESSIBLE PARKING
SPACES ARE AVAILABLE. REQUESTS FOR ACCOMMODATIONS OR
INTERPRETIVE SERVICES MUST BE MADE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THIS
MEETING. PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY SECRETARY'S OFFICE
AT(936) 825 6475 OR (936) 825 6408 OR BY FAX AT (936) 825 2403.



City Manager’s Message 

An Executive Summary of Agenda Items and Current Issues 

 

City of Navasota 

City Council Meeting 

5-10-21 

 

 

1.  Call to order 

 

2. Invocation and Pledges of Allegiance 

  

3. Remarks of Visitors 

Staff is unaware of anyone wishing to address the City Council. 

 

 

4.  Staff Report: 

 Capital Improvement Project report – John Henry with Bleyl& Associates will 

present an updated report on the progress of the capital improvement project. 

 

 Introduction of the Artists in Residence – The new round of artists have moved 

into the Horlock House and they will be introduced during the meeting. 

 

 Recognize staff for Years of Service – We will recognize staff members who have 

celebrated work anniversaries of 5, 10,15,20,25,30 years of service. 

 

 First Responders Day – Chief Myatt will report on the upcoming First 

Responders Day. 

 

 Update on Transportation Alternatives Program – Rayna Willenbrink will 

provide and update on the TXDOT Transportation Alternatives Program. 

 

 Update on Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan – Rayna Willenbrink will provide an 

update on the Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan. 

 

 Proclamation for Peace Officer Week. 

 

 

5.  Consideration and possible action on canvassing the returns for the May 1, 

2021 City Election. 

Consideración y posible acción sobre la búsqueda de los retornos para las 

elecciones municipales del 1 de mayo de 2021. 

The election was held Saturday May 1st.  The election must be canvassed by the 

governing body no later than May 12th. 

 

 



6.  Consideration and possible action on qualifying newly elected Council 

members to Positions 4 and 5 and administer the Oaths of Office. 

Consideración y posible acción sobre la calificación de los miembros recién 

elegidos del Consejo a los Puestos 4 y 5 y administrar los Juramentos del 

Cargo. 

Once the election is canvassed, we must qualify the newly elected members and 

administer the oaths of office. 

 

 

7.  Consideration and possible action on election of a Council member to serve 

as Mayor. 

 

 

8.  Consideration and possible action on election of a Council member to serve 

as Mayor Pro-Tem. 

 

 

9.  Presentation of the Capstone Project from the Bush School regarding capital 

improvements over the past 15 years. 

 The Bush School students who worked on the capstone project for the City will be 

in attendance to present the final information from their project.  The project 

covers capital improvements for the past 15 years and the impact. 

 

 

10.  Presentation by Tim Gregg on Celebrating Navasota. 

 Tim Gregg will present his work on Celebrating Navasota. 

  

 

11.  Consideration and possible action on Change Order No. 2 for the Railroad 

Street 2016 Flood CDBG - Disaster Recovery Grant. 

 Change order number 2 includes additional brick pavers to tie in a gap from the 

old project, and pavers in the crosswalks as well as replacing a section of water 

line that will be in the street.  The total change order amount is $4,208. 

 

 

12.  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 962-

21, amending Appendix A, Article A12.000, Public Library of the Code of 

Ordinances, of the City of Navasota, Texas regarding fee schedules. 

 The Library is working on three different summer camps,and would like to charge  

a fee of $20 per  person, and they are also selling bags for the Farmers Market, 

and would like to charge $5.00 per bag. 

 

 

 

 

 



13.  Consideration and possible action on appointments to boards and 

commissions. 

 Boards and commission appointments generally occur in October however, we 

have several vacancies and received an application recently for the Parks Board. 

Rebecca Cole is a resident of the city and is interested in improving the parks in 

Navasota. 

 

 

14.       Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 690-21, opposing Senate 

Bill 10. 

 Senate Bill 10, along with similar legislation in the House, would prohibit a city 

or county from spending public funds to directly or indirectly influence or attempt 

to influence the outcome of any legislation pending before legislature. The 

Resolution before you tonight is opposing Senate Bill 10. 

 

 

15.  Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion 

and vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by 

the Mayor or City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed 

from the Consent Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City 

Council as part of the regular agenda. 

Consent Items are: 

A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the month of April 2021; 

and 

B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the month of April 

2021. 

 

 

16.  Executive Session: The City Council shall meet in Executive Session as 

permitted by Section 551.087, Texas Government Code, for the purpose of 

deliberation regarding economic development negotiations with J & H 

Navasota Development, LLC regarding a potential Development Agreement. 

 City Council previously discussed this development agreement and asked staff to 

work on a couple of issues.  Staff met with Mr. Hassell and will present the results 

of the discussion. 

 

 

17.  Reconvene in open session. 

 

 

18.  Consideration and possible action on Executive Session Item, Section 

551.087, Texas Government Code, regarding a Development Agreement with 

J & H Navasota Development LLC. 

  

 

 



Calendar of Events 

 

May 18th     Town Hall Meeting on Transportation Alternatives 

5:30 p.m.                                             Program/Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan  

      Municipal Building 

 

May 21st     Sounds of Summer 

6:30 p.m.    Downtown Navasota 

 

May 24th      City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 

 

June 4th     TCMA Region 6 Meeting 

     Graham, Texas 

 

June 9th-13th     TCMA Annual Conference 

     Round Rock, Texas 

 

June 14th     City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 

 

June 18th     Sounds of Summer 

6:30 p.m.    Downtown Navasota 

 

June 28th     City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 

 

July 2nd     Navasota Freedom Festival 

6:00 p.m.     Downtown Navasota 

 

July 18th     Sounds of Summer 

6:30 p.m.     Downtown Navasota 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Brad Stafford 

City Manager 

 



 
 
 
 

Vision Statement: 
 

Navasota 2027:  What America Wants To Be 
“A beautiful, progressive, vibrant, service-oriented, 

close-knit community filled with 
historical charm and promise for people and business.” 

 
 

Mission Statement: 
 

“To guide Navasota’s growth in a way that maintains 
our heritage, culture, and uniqueness while 

maximizing our economic and social development.” 
 
 
 



 
 
 

THE CITY OF NAVASOTA 
COUNCIL LEADERSHIP POLICY 

 
 
It is the desire of the Navasota City Council to demonstrate responsible 
leadership by: 
 

(a) Establishing a 2027 Strategic Growth Map for the City of Navasota. 
 
(b) Assuring stable and effective city operations. 
 
(c) Developing and adopting policies that will guide the growth of the City 

of Navasota. 
 
(d) Facilitating private/public sector partnerships at the local, regional, 

state and federal level that will invest in the future of Navasota. 
 
(e) Ensuring all Navasota boards, commissions and committees are 

aligned with the Council’s growth policies. 



 

 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

S.M.A.R.T. GOAL SETTING SYSTEM 

Area Today’s Date Target Date Date Achieved 

City Council Retreat May 19, 2020 2020 – 2021  

 

Goal Statement: A descriptive statement of the DESIRED OUTCOME. 

(a S.M.A.R.T. Goal is Specific, Measurable, Actionable, Responsible and Time-bound) 

 

The Management Connection, Inc. provided Professional Facilitation to the City of Navasota 

City Council on May 19th, 2020. This document captures the discussion outcomes and Council’s 

direction to the staff for FY 2020 – 2021. 

 

 

Retreat Summary 

Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 9:20am. The City Manager reviewed the 

accomplishments made based on Council’s direction at the last Retreat in September 2019. A 

staff member from each department shared a SWOT Analysis of the department based on 

current circumstances and highlighted a few key areas they wanted Council think about as 

they move forward. The Council provided direction on multiple items from the agenda. The 

direction from the Council is provided below. 

 

City Council Direction for 2020 - 2021 

Action Steps (List the specific actions you will take to achieve this goal) Target Date Who 
Percentage 

Completion 

1. The Council directed the City Manager not to 

lay off anyone from the workforce due to the 

current environment. The Council expressed 

concern that the staff was already shorthanded 

and operating with a heavy workload. 

a. The City Manager was asked to explore 

options on how to strengthen the 

workforce by adding positions. The City 

Manager is to conduct a Cost/Benefit 

Analysis for positions needed. 

2020 – 

2021 
City Staff  

2. The Fire Chief will provide the Council with a 

monetary amount of what it will take to move 

part-time staff to full-time staff. 

6/19/20 Fire Chief  

3. The City Manager and Fire Chief will consider 2020 – City Manager,  



 

 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

options for the new Fire Station. 

a. Look into possible options to finance the 

new station with low interest rates. 

b. Look into building a new station with 

partnerships, i.e. the animal shelter. 

c. Staffing is the priority for the Fire 

Department.  

2021  Fire Chief 

4. The City Staff gave a comprehensive 

explanation of the City’s Financial Picture. The 

Council complimented the Staff’s ability to 

manage the City’s finances in an efficient and 

effective manner. The Council also 

acknowledged that their perspective of the 

finances had changed from possibly being in 

trouble to having a good handle on them. 

2020 – 

2021 
City Staff  

5. The Council agreed on the criteria in which the 

City’s Reserve funds may be used: 

a. The funds should be left untouched 

unless they are absolutely needed. 

b. The funds should be used as leverage for 

other things during this time. 

c. Per the Financial Policy, the Reserve 

funds may be used in one or a 

combination of the following ways: 

i. Emergencies; 

ii. One-time expenditures that do not 

increase reoccurring operating 

costs 

iii. Major capital purchases 

iv. Start-up expenditures for new 

programs undertaken at mid-year, 

provided such action is considered 

in the context of multiyear 

projections or program revenues 

and expenditures 

2020 – 

2021 
City Staff  

6. The City Staff will consider opportunities to 

capitalize on the low interest rates and use 

them to the City’s advantage. The Staff will 

present these opportunities to Council. 

2020 – 

2021 
City Staff  

7. The City Staff gave a detailed update on the 2020 – City Staff  



 

 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

Appraisal District. This gave the Council a clear 

picture of what to expect. 

2021 

8. The Mayor and City Manager will create a 

Legislative Agenda and present it to the 

Council. 

2020 – 

2021 

Mayor, City 

Manager 
 

9. The Council directed the City Manager to 

continue the Downtown Plan as he explained it. 

The City Manager is to leverage private/public 

partnerships in completing the project. 

a. The Downtown Plan addressed the 

streetscapes, traffic patterns, quiet zone, 

cross walk, building construction and 

financial resources. 

2020 – 

2021 
City Staff  

10. The Council discussed the pros and cons of 

being part of the BCS MSA. The Council and 

Staff did not identify any real benefit of being 

part of the MSA. In fact, there was more 

agreement as to why the City should not be part 

of the MSA. The Council decided to continue to 

monitor the MSA. 

2020 – 

2021 
City Staff  

11. The City Staff will continue to strengthen 

partnerships with other entities. 

2020 – 

2021 
City Staff  

12. The City Manager will lead the staff in 

incorporating their Department SWOT Analysis 

into an Action Plan for 2020 – 2021. 

2020 – 

2021 
City Staff  

 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 4. AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2021
 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Staff Report:

(a) Capital Improvement Project report;

(b) Introduction of the Artists in Residence;

(c) Recognize staff for Years of Service;

(d) First Responders Day;

(e) Update on Transportation Alternatives Program;

(f) Update on Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan;

(g) Proclamation for Peace Officer Week;

(h) Board and Commission update; and

(i) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of
community interests, including expressions of thanks,
congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday
schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials,
public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming
events organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding
social, ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored
by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended by City
officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent
threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that
has arisen after the posting of the agenda.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
 

Brad Stafford, City Manager



 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Years of Service Awards
2. Proclamation

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1620071893x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1620072960x_at.pdf


   

5 
 

MAY 10, 2021 

Brad Stafford, City Manager 



   

15

5 
 

MAY 10, 2021 

Brad Stafford, City Manager 



   

15

5 
 

MAY 10, 2021 

Brad Stafford, City Manager 



  

15

5 
 

MAY 10, 2021 

Bert Miller, Mayor 



 

 

PROCLAMATION  

WHEREAS, the Congress and President of the United States have designated 

May 15  as Peace Officers' Memorial Day, and the week in which May 15 falls as 

National Police week; and 

WHEREAS, the members of the Navasota Police Department play an essential 

role in safeguarding the rights and freedoms of the citizens of Navasota; and 

WHEREAS, it is important that all citizens know and understand the duties, 

responsibilities, hazards, and sacrifices of their law enforcement agency, and that 

members of our law enforcement agency recognize their duty to serve the 

people by safeguarding life and property, by protecting them against violence 

and disorder, and by protecting the innocent against deception and the weak 

against oppression; and 

WHEREAS, the men and women of the law enforcement agency of Navasota 

unceasingly provide a vital public service; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Mayor of the City of Navasota, call upon all citizens of 

Navasota and upon all patriotic, civic and educational organizations to observe 

the week of May 9 - 15, 2021, as National Police Week in which all of our citizens 

may join in commemorating law enforcement officers, past and present, who, by 

their faithful and loyal devotion to their responsibilities, have rendered a 

dedicated service to their communities and, in so doing, have established for 

themselves an enviable and enduring reputation for preserving the rights and 

security of all citizens. 

I further call upon all citizens of Navasota to observe the 15th of May, 2021, as 

Peace Officers' Memorial Day in honor of those law enforcement officers who, 

through their courageous deeds, have made the ultimate sacrifice in service to 

their community or have become disabled in the performance of duty, and let us 

recognize and pay respect to the survivors of our fallen heroes.  

 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereto set my hand and caused to 
be affixed the seal of the City of Navasota, Texas this 10th day of May, 
2021. 
 
                                                                   
                                                           _______________________________ 

                      BERT MILLER, MAYOR 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 5. AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2021
 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on canvassing the
returns for the May 1, 2021 City Election.

Consideración y posible acción sobre la búsqueda de los retornos
para las elecciones municipales del 1 de mayo de 2021.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The election law states that the May 1, 2021 City election must be
canvassed between May 4-12, 2021.  Attached you will find the
unofficial election results.  I should receive the official certified
results by the end of the week and I will forward that to each of
you.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends canvassing the returns for the May 1, 2021
City election.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Unofficial Election Results

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1620231230x_at.pdf




ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 6. AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2021
 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on qualifying newly
elected Council members to Positions 4 and 5 and administer the
Oaths of Office.

Consideración y posible acción sobre la calificación de los
miembros recién elegidos del Consejo a los Puestos 4 y 5 y
administrar los Juramentos del Cargo.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The Elections Division recommends that post election procedures
occur in the following sequence:

Election is canvassed at an open meeting
Certificate of Election is issued to newly-elected officers
Statement of Officer is completed
Newly elected officers take the Oath of Office
Newly sworn officers may assume the duties of their office

 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that each newly elected Council member be
given a Certificate of Election, complete the Statement of Officer
and take the Oath of Office.
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



1. Bert Miller's Election Forms
2. Grant Holt's Election Forms

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1620079969x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1620080013x_at.pdf














ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 7. AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2021
 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on election of a Council
member to serve as Mayor.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Art. IV, Section 13 of the Charter reads as follows:
 
"The Council members shall elect one of their members as
chairman at the first regular meeting following their election.
He/she shall be called Mayor and shall be the presiding officer of
the City Council. He/she shall vote as a member of the Council on
all matters coming before the body; sign all bonds; warrants; and
other official documents; be the official lead of the City; and
exercise all power and resolution of the City Council"
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends electing a Mayor.
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 8. AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2021
 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on election of a Council
member to serve as Mayor Pro-Tem.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Art. IV, Section 14 of the Charter reads as follows:

"The Mayor Pro-Tem shall be selected from among the members
of the City Council, and shall perform all the duties of the Mayor in
his/her absence or disability.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends electing a Mayor Pro-Tem.
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 9. AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2021
 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Presentation of the Capstone Project from the Bush School
regarding capital improvements over the past 15 years.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends listening to the presentation.
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Brad Stafford, City Manager



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 10. AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2021
 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Presentation by Tim Gregg on Celebrating Navasota.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends listening to the presentation.
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Brad Stafford, City Manager



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 11. AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2021
 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on Change Order No. 2
for the Railroad Street 2016 Flood CDBG - Disaster Recovery
Grant.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Additional pavers were requested on the sidewalk along
Washington Ave.(West of Railroad Street) to fill in a gap that was
created by the reduction in the width of Railroad Street.  Also,
Pavers were requested for the crosswalk across Railroad Street
connecting the new parking lot on the west side of Railroad Street
to the ramp on the east side of Railroad Street at McAlpine.  The
deteriorating waterline under Railroad Street at Holland needs to
be replaced to minimize the possibility of having to cut the new
pavement of Railroad street when the old piping leaks.  
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
Change Order No. 2: $4,208   

Revised Contract Amount: $1,803,261
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of Change Order No. 2 in the amount
of $4,208 for the Railroad Street 2016 Flood CDBG Disaster
Recovery Grant.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Change Order No. 2

Jennifer Reyna, Utility Administrative
Assistant

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1620071021x_at.pdf


















ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 12. AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2021
 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on the first reading of
Ordinance No. 962-21, amending Appendix A, Article A12.000,
Public Library of the Code of Ordinances, of the City of Navasota,
Texas regarding fee schedules.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The Library staff would like to host summer camps and would like
to charge a $20.00 fee to cover costs.  They also would like to sell
bags for the Farmers Market at a cost of $5.00 per bag.

June 21-25 Art Camp

July 12-16 Nature Camp

July 26-30 Art Camp
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the first reading of Ordinance No.
962-21, amending Appendix A, Article A12.000, Public Library of
the Code of Ordinances, of the City of Navasota, Texas regarding
fee schedules.
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Lance Hall, Finance Director



1. Ordinance No. 962-21
2. Bag Pricing
3. Farmers Market Bag
4. Art Camp
5. Day Camp Proposal
6. Registration Form

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1619795103x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1619718767x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1619718749x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1619718728x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1619718707x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1619710791x_at.pdf


ORDINANCE NO. 962-21 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS AMENDING 
APPENDIX A, ARTICLE A5.000, PUBLIC WORKS; OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES, OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS REGARDING FEE 
SCHEDULES; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING 
FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; 
FINDING PROPER NOTICE OF MEETING; AND PROVIDING FOR 
CERTIFICATION OF ADOPTION. 
 

WHEREAS,  the City Council of the City of Navasota previously adopted certain 
provisions relating to fee schedules; and  

 
WHEREAS,  the City Council desires to amend certain regulations applicable to the fee 

schedules; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that it is in the best interest of the 

City to adopt the regulations as set forth herein below in order to protect 
the financial stability of the City; 

 
     NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Navasota, 
Texas: 
 
SECTION 1. FINDINGS INCORPORATED 
 
The findings set forth above are incorporated into the body of this ordinance as if fully set forth 
herein. 
 
SECTION 2. PUBLIC LIBRARY 
  

Sec. A12.000 Public Library 

Appendix A, A12.000 Public Library and of the City of Navasota Code of Ordinances is 
hereby amended to read as follows: 

 
(h) Summer Camp Registration: $20.00 
(i) Farmers Market Bag: $5.00 

SECTION 3. CUMULATIVE EFFECT  

This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all laws of the State of Texas and the United States 
governing the subject matter of this Ordinance, now existing or as hereafter amended.  
 
SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 
It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the phrases, clauses, 
sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance are severable, and if any phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional or invalid by 



the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality or 
invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and 
sections of this Ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without 
the incorporation of this Ordinance of any such unconstitutional or invalid phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section. 

 
SECTION 5. REPEALER CLAUSE 
Any provision of any prior ordinance of the City whether codified or uncodified, which are in 
conflict with any provision of this Ordinance, are hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict, 
but all other provisions of the ordinances of the City whether codified or uncodified, which are 
not in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE 
This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage, approval and adoption on 
second reading, and its publication as may be required by law. 

 
SECTION 7. NOTICE OF MEETING 
Notice of the time and place, where and when said Ordinance would be considered by the City 
Council at a public meeting was given in accordance with applicable law, prior to the time 
designated for meeting.  
 
PASSED ON FIRST READING THIS THE 10TH DAY OF MAY, 2021. 
 
                                                                             
                                                         __________________________ 
                                                                  BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
PASSED ON SECOND READING THIS THE 24TH DAY OF MAY, 2021. 
 
                                                                       
                                                          __________________________ 
                                                                   BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



����������	
��		�����	�� �����������������
����� !�"�#$�%%� ! &'()*'+�,%�*-.�"�/* 0'1-2* /34(*15'�&66*3 ( /* 2 35�#$*%%� !#�! �� �7*'�7-4(5'�6$56+*3(89*'!*(�:-44)*'.; <=>?@�ABBCDEE F>EEGHCB I?JK�LK

#3M�N*(-� OPQRSTTU-' �OQVSWT�X3!�36+4�)�($�($�4�*'.5'Y
Z*�[*3�'5\3�'5�M�� .�4$�%%� !; �]* � �̂54��34� 544 � �_54�.5 2-�� �N'-.54$*)̀Ua$�M�2* 

����bHKcd � eD>C

�<=>?@�ABBCDEE�fgDhi?CDBj�<=>?@�ABBCDEE�fgDhi?CDBjk&..�2* -��OQTSTTl �miE?KDEE�n>=D�fgDhi?CDBj�o?CEc�n>=D�fgDhi?CDBj�p>Ec�n>=D�fgDhi?CDBj�IcCDDc�ABBCDEE�fgDhi?CDBj�Aqcr�Ei?cDr�iK?cr�si?@B?KJ�fHqc?HK>@j�t?cu�fgDhi?CDBj�vDw>E�x?qyFHEc>@�tHBD�fgDhi?CDBj�zIA�tD@@�Ki=sDC�fgDhi?CDBj�{||?}D�ni=sDC�fgDhi�Ua(�<wcDKE?HK]*(58�~5�.*� *(�4$�%�(*�:��M*a54��&:�̀9:�4�- .�.�%�*1-26�%*36$�-..'54454S�#-15�-4�1[�4$�%%� !�-..'544�Z��5'5 (�M���� !�-..'544

N'-6+�̂*3'��'.5'�#(-(34#55�.5(-��4

�55%�15�4�! 5.�� ��
U.�(�Z54�! �3- 2([ ��� �kOQSPP�5-Sl#5(3%�"��($5' OQ��STT ���5)�.5(-��4#$�%%� ! 9_UU�(51���N�NQP�:*%3�-'�]* �~*�5 �_534-M�5�N*(5��-!4

9_UUk��OW�STTlTV̀QR~5. 54.-[ k��O��STTlTV̀QQN354.-[ k��OQTTSTTlTV̀QTX* .-[
U1-���&..'544/* 0'1�U1-�� ~$-(��4���� .�#$�%%� !;N[%5�*7��*6-2* �34� 544�]-159�'4(�]-15�-4(�]-15&..'544&..'544�R/�([#(-(5̀:'*�� 65��%̀:*4(-��/*.5/*3 ('[/5��� 31M5'��65� 31M5'
]-15�* �/-'./-'.�]31M5'/-'.�N[%5Ua%�'-2* 

#$-'5�[*3'�6-'(
*̂3'�/-'(Q������������������ ���������������������� ����������������� ������������������������  ������������������� ¡���¢�¡����������£����������� ¤¥�� ¦���������§��� £�̈ �¢��©������ª������� ����������¤©�«���� ¬�������¤�������� ����������� ����



���������	
���������������
������������	���
�����������������	����	����	���������������	�������������������	�����	� ������!"�#����$���%������&���'�
���#���'�
���"������
�(������)��� *�������$�	�+,���������	���
�-������.���/��������#��
�"������������
����0 ���������"�#���$������������������1���+����	�����2�.�����2�/.3 �.���������	�2������.���������.��/�	�������4���	�������4���	��'������ �4	5����'��.,������$�
��.�������6���
	���	����+�����
"����1���"��� �7��	�������	#�����	
8�9:9;�������	�'�
������.����
�������#��� �"����'���$�#����$������������5�2��

�<<�����



Farmers Market Tote Bag Proposal 

 

Purposes of the Bag: 

-Bags have been requested to carry merchandise 

-Promotion of the Farmers Market as people reuse them 

 

Cost of the Bags: 

$3.38 each for full color 

 

Proposed Fee at Farmers Market: 

$5 per bag 



 Summer Camp 2021 Taught by Apinya Srikhwanthong 
 

Summer Art Camp 
for 7–12-year-old artists 

 
Explore art and learn about world renowned artists   
 

This art camp will be taught by former Navasota Artist-in-Residence, Apinya Srikhwanthong. We will explore and 
create artwork inspired by nature and our surroundings. Explorers will also learn about world-renowned artists 
and their arts such as Vincent Van Gogh's sunflowers paintings, Claude Monet’s landscapes, Yayoi Kusama’s 
mushrooms collage etc. Students will experiment with fundamental arts including basic drawing, painting, and 
mixed-media in watercolor, acrylic, charcoal, and paper collage techniques.  
 
Supplies provided: pencils, erasers, watercolor paper, markers, color pencils, watercolors, brushes, towels, water 

cups, clipboards, sketch paper, masking tape, glue, acrylic paints, paper plates 
 
 
 

              



2021 Library Summer Day Camps 

 

June 21-25 from 10 AM-Noon Art Camp 

July 12-16 from 10 AM-Noon Get Wild! Nature Camp 

July 26-30 from 10 AM-Noon Art Camp 

 

Ages: 7-12 years old 

 

Cost: $20 per child includes all supplies and a snack 

 

Maximum of 10 children per camp.  Registration will open May 14th and will remain open until all spots are filled.  Spots 

are first come, first served. 

 

Art Camp Description 

 

 

 

 

Get Wild! Nature Camp Description 

In this fun 1 week camp, children will learn more about nature and the environment while playing games, completing 

hands on projects and exploring the outdoors!   Activities will be chosen from Texas Parks & Wildlife’s Project Wild and 

Aquatic Wild curriculum.  We will use tools such as binoculars and magnifying glasses to study the ecosystem around the 

library and learn more about the animals and plants that live here.  Children will also learn the role they play in their 

ecosystem and how can they become better stewards of the resources around them. 

 

 

 



 



2021 SUMMER CAMP REGISTRATION 

 

Participant Name: 

Parent/Guardian Name: 

Address: 

City:      State:     Zip: 

Phone Number: 

E-mail: 

Age (Ages 6-12 Child must be 6 by the beginning of camp): 

Does your child have any medical conditions (including allergies) that we should be aware of? 

 

I give permission for my child to be photographed and for those images to be used by the 

Navasota Public Library in its local public service publicity. (Circle one) 

       Yes   No 

 

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that I am the parent or legal guardian of the student listed 

above. I hereby give permission for the staff of the Navasota Public Library and the Class 

Instructor(s) to seek, during the period of the class, appropriate medical attention in the 

event of an accident, injury, or illness. 

 

I, the undersigned, for ourselves, our heirs, executors and administrators, waive, release and 

forever discharge the Navasota Public Library and its staff, officers, agents, employees, 

representatives, successors, and assigns from any and all liability, claims, demands, actions, 

and causes of actions whatsoever arising out of or related to loss, personal injury or property 

damage that may be sustained or occur during participation in the class activities or while at 

class.  

 



Parent/Guardian Signature: 

 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 13. AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2021
 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on appointments to
boards and commissions.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Annually a portion of appointees terms on the boards and
commissions expire in October. On October 12th appointments
were made to the boards and commissions, however, there are
vacancies remaining to be filled. Staff received an email
application from Rebecca Cole wanting to serve on the Parks and
Recreation Board.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends appointing Rebecca Cole to the Parks and
Recreation Board.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Application

Brad Stafford, City Manager

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1619793849x_at.pdf


From: Madison Brooks <mbrooks@navasotatx.gov>  
Sent: Tuesday, April 20, 2021 8:14 AM 
To: Susie Homeyer <shomeyer@navasotatx.gov> 
Subject: FW: Form submission from: Volunteer on a City Board Webform 
 
 
 

 

Madison Brooks 

Marketing/Communications Coordinator   

City of Navasota  

MBrooks@navasotatx.gov                   

tel: 936-825-6475  

fax: 936–825-4018  

 

 

 
 

Submitted on Sunday, April 18, 2021 - 5:03pm 
Submitted by anonymous user: 74.193.31.141 
Submitted values are: 

==Personal Information:== 
Select the Board, Commission or Committee applying for: Parks & 
Recreation Board 
Select the alternate Board, Commission or Committee applying for: 
Keep Navasota Beautiful Commission 
Full Name: Rebecca Cole 
Maiden Name: 
E-mail Address: BeccaLoulouC@yahoo.com 
Phone Number: 2816196016 
Gender: Female 
==Address:== 
Street: 309 N Judson St 
City: Navasota 
State: Texas 
Zipcode: 77868 

Occupation: Administrative Assistant to the Executive Dean - 
Blinn College (Bryan) 

==Residency Information:== 
Are you a resident of Navasota? Yes 
Own property located in the City of Navasota: Yes 

mailto:mbrooks@navasotatx.gov
mailto:shomeyer@navasotatx.gov
mailto:MBrooks@navasotatx.gov
mailto:BeccaLoulouC@yahoo.com


==Education & Hobbies:== 
High School: Klein Collins High School 
College: Lonestar College 
Trade or Business School: 
Hobbies: Tennis, Soccer, Drawing, Painting, Learning 

==Organization Membership Information:== 
Are you currently serving on other Boards, Commissions or 
Committees? No 
If yes, which? 
Have you served on a Board, Commissions or Committee before? No 
If yes, which? 
Please list organization memberships and positions held: Staff 
Council - Secretary - Blinn College (Current) 
Please list areas of special interest or skills which you feel 
may be helpful: 
I would really love to keep things up to date and try to assist 
in (or advocate) updating/cleaning up current sports 
fields/parks. Logan Sechelski Fields is in terrible condition. 
Soccer goals with no nets, soccer goals warped, unmarked fields, 
etc. I'm also interested in the possibility of access to Tennis 
Courts to the public without driving to Anderson or BCS. Navasota 
High School has beautiful blue tennis courts, but appear in no 
way to be open to the public - so maybe a possible partnership? 

The "Logan Soccer Complex" on the website seems wrongly addressed 
being that the sign at the park actually says "Logan Sechelski 
Fields" and has an entirely different address (400 Veterans 
Memorial Drive). 4 soccer fields doesn't seem accurate in the 
current condition it's in. The fields aren't playable because 
they aren't marked. Unless there is an actual Logan Soccer 
Complex somewhere - I couldn't find it. I tried finding the 
posted Fairway Drive address and find just open land. I drove up 
and down that road and found nothing close to a soccer field. 

==Signature:== 
Signature (Typed): Rebecca Cole 
Today's Date: April 18, 2021 

The results of this submission may be viewed at: 
https://www.navasotatx.gov/node/613/submission/1171 

 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the City of Navasota's organization. DO NOT click links or open 
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

 
 
 

https://www.navasotatx.gov/node/613/submission/1171


ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 14. AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2021
 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 690-
21, expressing opposition to the proposed Senate Bill 10 and
similar Legislation in the 87th Texas Legislature to restrict the
ability of local governments to advocate for their communities.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The proposed Senate Bill 10, along with similar legislation in the
House, would prohibit a city or county from spending public funds
to directly or indirectly influence or attempt to influence the
outcome of any legislation pending before the legislature.  This bill
would deleteriously affect the City’s ability to advocate for our
community while adding financial costs and operational
complexities.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolution No. 690-21

 

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1620233965x_at.pdf


RESOLUTION NO. 690-21 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, 

TEXAS, EXPRESSING OPPOSITION TO THE PROPOSED SENATE BILL 10 

AND SIMILAR LEGISLATION IN THE 87TH TEXAS LEGISLATURE TO 

RESTRICT THE ABILITY OF LOCAL GOVERNMENTS TO ADVOCATE FOR 

THEIR COMMUNITIES 

 

WHEREAS, the 2021 Legislative Program provides that the City seeks to 

preserve home rule authority for Navasota citizens and may oppose bills that 

allow for state preemption of municipal authority or erode Navasota’s authority 

to govern locally; and 

WHEREAS, with the Texas Legislature’s increasing focus on local government, 

the City has benefitted greatly from its membership in the Texas Municipal 

League to navigate each legislative session; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed Senate Bill 10, along with similar legislation in the 

House, would prohibit a city or county from spending public funds to directly or 

indirectly influence or attempt to influence the outcome of any legislation 

pending before the legislature; and 

WHEREAS, this bill would deleteriously affect the City’s ability to advocate for 

our community while adding financial costs and operational complexities; now, 

therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, 

TEXAS: 

PART 1: That the facts and recitations set forth in this Resolution are 

declared true and correct. 

PART 2: That the City Council hereby opposes Senate Bill 10, Senate Bill 

234, and House Bill 749, all of which propose to limit the authority 

for local communities to effectively lobby to the legislature for their 

interests. 

PART 3: That the City Council hereby agrees that these services enhance 

City leaders’ ability to better understand legislative developments, 

focus on the most essential issues impacting citizens and 

businesses, and communicate efficiently with elected 

representatives, House and Senate leadership, and other agencies. 



PART 4: That this Resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its 

passage. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS THE 10TH DAY OF MAY, 2021. 

 

 

                                              _________________________ 

                                                       BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

                                              



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 15. AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2021
 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon
with one motion and vote. No separate discussion or action is
necessary unless requested by the Mayor or City Councilmember,
in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda
for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of
the regular agenda.

Consent Items are:

A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the month
of April 2021; and

B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the
month of April 2021;

 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the consent agenda items which
includes the minutes and expenditures for the month of April
2021. 
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



1. Minutes - 04/12/2021
2. Minutes - 04/26/2021
3. Expenditures for April 2021

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1619790691x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1619790712x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1620071138x_at.pdf


MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 

APRIL 12, 2021 

 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City Council 

Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 6:00 p.m., Navasota, 

Texas on the above date with the following being present: 

 

   Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Pattie Pederson, Councilmember, Place # 2 

Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 

Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Brad Stafford, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; 

Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director; Rayna Willenbrink, Economic 

Development Specialist; Shawn Myatt, Police Chief/Assistant City Manager; Cary Bovey, 

Legal Counsel; Jennifer Reyna, Administrative Assistant; Lance Hall, Finance Director; 

Jeff Greer, Director of Utilities; Edwin Sandoval, Heavy Equipment Operator; Jose 

Coronilla, Director of Streets and Sanitation; Colten Haffey, Parks and Recreation 

Specialist; Emily Peterson, Executive Assistant; Pat Gruner, Navasota Municipal Judge; 

Wilma K. Peavy, Financial Assistant; Douglas Franklin, Heavy Equipment Operator; 

Peggy Johnson, Human Resource Director; and Christina Griffin, HR Specialist. 

 

VISITORS:  Connie Clements, Mac Vaughn, Robert Belt, John Henry, Doris Sauls, R. J. 

Sauls, Audrey Sauls, Ben Miller (Virtually), Shawn McGum, Mary Evan, Louis Vidotto, 

Nancy Vidotto, Brittany Taylor, Keith Taylor and Raymond Adams. 

 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

  

 1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

2.  Invocation was given by Mac Vaughn.  The City Council, staff members and 

visitors then recited the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and the Texas 

Flag. 

 

3.  Remarks of visitors:  None. 

 

 



4.  Staff report: 

 

a) City Manager Brad Stafford introduced the following new employees:  

Christina Griffin, Emily Peterson, Colton Haffey and Wilma K. Peavy. 

 

b)  John Henry gave an update on the Capital Improvements project; 

 

c) Economic Development Specialist Rayna Willenbrink gave an update on the 

Navasota Economic Development website; 

 

d) Director of Streets and Sanitation Jose Coronilla gave a drainage update; 

 

e) Administrative Assistant Jennifer Reyna gave an update on the Clean-Up 

event; 

 

f) Police Chief/Assistant City Manager Shawn Myatt gave an update on the cost 

for signs on the Engine Brake Ordinance; 

 

g) Councilmember Bernie Gessner gave an update on the latest Planning and 

Zoning meeting; and 

 

g) There was not an update from Councilmembers and staff about upcoming 

events. 

 

5.  Mayor Bert Miller moved to approve the audit for fiscal year ending 

September 30, 2020, seconded by Councilmember Pattie Pederson and with each 

Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

6.  Resident Connie Clements addressed the City Council about the proposed 

bike lanes for Hillside Drive.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to contract 

with Goodwin-Lasiter-Strong for grant writing services for TxDOT’s 

Transportation Alternative grant funding cycle in the amount of $14,000.00 plus 

reimbursable for the development of three project applications for the TxDOT 

Transportation Alternative Program, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt and 

with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

7.  Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance 

No. 960-21, regarding placement of stop signs at the intersection of Carriage 

Lane and Mockingbird Street, regulating traffic traveling south on Carriage Lane.  

The intersection of Heritage Drive and Meadow Lake Drive, regulating traffic 

west on Heritage Drive.  The intersection of Meadow Lake Drive and Heritage 



Drive, regulating traffic traveling south on Meadow Lake Drive, seconded by 

Councilmember Pattie Pederson and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the 

motion carried. 

 

8.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the Navasota Employee 

Handbook, with the changes mentioned, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz 

and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

9.  Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance 

No. 961-21, budget amendment for the airport improvements by adding 

$54,800.00, seconded by Councilmember Pattie Pederson and with each 

Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

10. Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to appoint Myra Prosper-Dickson to 

the Navasota Housing Authority Board, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz 

and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to appoint Kristen Smith to the Keep Navasota 

Beautiful Commission, seconded by Councilmember Bernie Gessner and with 

each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

11. Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to accept the 2021 Consumer Price 

Index (CPI) adjustment to municipal telecommunications right-of-way access line 

rates, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember 

voting AYE, the motion carried. 

12. Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the consent agenda items 

which include the minutes and expenditures for the month of March 2021; the 
second reading of Ordinance No. 958-21, approving a zoning change application 
submitted to the City of Navasota by Texas Group Development, LLC, for the 
property located along Dove Crossing Ln, Navasota, Grimes County, TX 77868. 
The zoning change application requests to change the zoning from R-1A: high 
density, single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential district to 
Navasota Hills PUD, a 4,500 square foot lot planned unit development for the 
development of a single dwelling unit subdivision. The property affected is legally 
described as Dove Crossing, Block 7, Lot 5, Acres 5.08; and the second reading 
of Ordinance No. 959-21, prohibiting the use of Engine Brakes in the City of 
Navasota, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember 
voting AYE, the motion carried. 



13. The City Council met in Executive Session as permitted by Section 551.074, 
Texas Government Code, Personnel Matters, concerning the evaluation and 
reappointment of the Navasota Municipal Judge. The time was 7:27 p.m. 

14. The City Council reconvened in open session at 8:18 p.m. 

15. Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to reappoint Pat Gruner and extend her 
contract for two years and increase her pay to $21,600.00 a year, seconded by 
Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion 
carried. 

 Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 8:20 p.m. 

Councilmember Pattie Pederson moved to reconsider Agenda Item No. 15,   
seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt and with each Councilmember voting 
AYE, the meeting reconvened in open session.  The time was 8:22 p.m. 

Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to extend a renewal to Judge Gruner for two 
years and increase her pay to $25,200.00 a year, seconded by Josh Fultz and 
with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried.   

16. Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 8:24 p.m. 

 

 

                                      

                                                     ___________________________ 

                                                            BERT MILER, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 

APRIL 26, 2021 

 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City Council 

Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 6:00 p.m., Navasota, Texas on 

the above date with the following being present: 

 

   Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Pattie Pederson, Councilmember, Place # 2 

Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 

Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Brad Stafford, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; Lupe 

Diosdado, Development Services Director; Rayna Willenbrink, Economic Development Specialist; 

Shawn Myatt, Police Chief/Assistant City Manager; Cary Bovey, Legal Counsel; Jennifer Reyna, 

Administrative Assistant; Lance Hall, Finance Director; Jeff Greer, Director of Utilities; Jose 

Coronilla, Director of Streets and Sanitation; Colten Haffey, Parks and Recreation Specialist; Pat 

Gruner, Navasota Municipal Judge; Peggy Johnson, Human Resource Director; Erik Covarrubias, 

Code Enforcement Specialist; Jason Katkoski, Fire Chief/EMC; Rayna Willenbrink, Economic 

Development Specialist (Virtually) and Michael Mize, Lieutenant. 

 

VISITORS:  Connie Clements, Mac Vaughn, Ron Cox, Debbie Grimes, Richard Grimes, R. J. 

Sauls, Doris Sauls, R. J. Sauls, Eddie Bosse, Deborah Richardson, Mike Scoggins (Virtually), 

Myra Prosper-Dickson and Leslie Shoppe.  

 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

  

 1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

2.  Invocation was given by Mac Vaughn.  The City Council, staff members and visitors 

then recited the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and the Texas Flag. 

 

3.  Remarks of visitors:  None. 

 

4.  Staff report: 

 

a) Marketing and Communication Coordinator Madison Brooks gave an update about the 

Sounds of Summer and Freedom Festival; 

 

b) Code Enforcement Specialist Erik Covarrubias gave a report on the Trash-Off results; 

 



c) Economic Development Specialist Rayna Willenbrink gave an update on the Economic 

Development Corporation; 

 

d) Councilmember Bernie Gessner gave an update on the latest Planning and Zoning 

meeting; and 

 

e) Councilmembers and staff informed the audience about upcoming events. 

 

5.  Ron Cox, with Ron Cox Consulting, went over the proposed Strategic Plan for FY 

2021-2022 with the City Council. 

 

6.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve an agreement with SafeBuilt 

Services for building backup inspections and plan review services, seconded by Mayor 

Pro-Tem Grant Holt and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

7.  Richard Grimes addressed the City Council about putting up Crime Stoppers Signs 

around the City.  Connie Clements also addressed the City Council about putting up 

Crime Stopper Signs around the City as well.  Mac Vaughn addressed the City Council 

and asked if placing the Crime Stoppers Signs on telephone poles was off limits.  

Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to authorized staff to make the discretion as to 

where the signs go, seconded by Councilmember Pattie Pederson and with each 

Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

8. Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to authorize staff to submit an application for 

the 2021 Crosswalk Grant – Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons for America Walks, 

seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the 

motion carried. 

 

9.  Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to authorize staff to submit an application for the 

2021 Kubota Hometown Proud Grant Program, seconded by Councilmember Bernie 

Gessner and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

10. Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to authorize staff to submit an application for 

the T-Mobile Hometown Techover Contest, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and 

with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

11. Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve the Depository Services Agreement for 

the term August 1, 2021 to July 31, 2025 with Citizens State Bank, seconded by Mayor 

Pro-Tem Grant Holt and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

12. The City Council reviewed the quarterly investment report for March 31, 2021. 

 

13. Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the consent agenda items which 

include the second reading of Ordinance No. 960-21, regarding placement of stop signs 

at the intersection of Carriage Lane and Mockingbird Street, regulating traffic traveling 



south on Carriage Lane.  The intersection of Heritage Drive and Meadow Lake Drive, 

regulating traffic west on Heritage Drive.  The intersection of Meadow Lake Drive and 

Heritage Drive, regulating traffic traveling south on Meadow Lake Drive; and the second 

reading of reading of Ordinance No. 961-21, budget amendment for the airport 

improvements by adding $54,800.00, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and with 

each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

14. The City Council met in Executive Session as permitted by Section 551.087, Texas 

Government Code, for the purpose of deliberation regarding economic development 

negotiations with J & H Navasota Development, LLC regarding a potential Development 

Agreement.  The time was 7:13 p.m. 

15. The City Council reconvened in open session at 8:02 p.m. 

16.  The City Council did not take any action on the potential Development Agreement 
with J & H Development, LLC. 

17.  Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 8:04 p.m. 

 

                                      

                                                     ___________________________ 

                                                            BERT MILER, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 









































































































ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 16. AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2021
 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Executive Session: The City Council shall meet in Executive
Session as permitted by Section 551.087, Texas Government
Code, for the purpose of deliberation regarding economic
development negotiations with J & H Navasota Development, LLC
regarding a potential Development Agreement.

 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The time is ________p.m.

 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends the City Council convene into Executive
Session.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Development Agreement

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1620246703x_at.pdf


 

 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS 

AND 

J & H NAVASOTA DEVELOPMENT, LLC. 



 

 1 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 

    § 

COUNTY OF GRIMES § 

 

This Development Agreement ("Agreement") is between the City of Navasota, 

Texas, a Texas Home Rule City (the "City") and J & H Navasota Development, LLC, a 

Texas limited liability company ("J & H").  In this Agreement, the City and J & H are 

sometimes individually referred to as a "Party" and collectively referred to as the "Parties." 

 

RECITALS 

 

J & H owns approximately 102.4197 acres of land (the "Land"), currently located, 

in Grimes County, Texas (the "County") comprising Phase III of the Pecan Lakes 

Subdivision.   The Land is that tract or parcel of land described by metes and bounds in 

Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes. J & H desires that the 

Land be governed by this Agreement. 

 

J & H intends to develop the Land for single-family residential purposes in 

accordance with the applicable ordinances and regulations of the CITY, and in this 

Agreement, the Land as it will be developed by J & H, and the other improvements to be 

constructed and obligations to be performed by J & H, are sometimes referred to herein as 

the "Project.” J & H intends to make a significant investment in developing the Land over 

the period of this Agreement. 

 

J & H and the City wish to enter into this Agreement to encourage appropriate 

planning of the Project, provide for specific requirements of J & H and the City throughout 

the term of this Agreement, to provide for J & H’s commitment concerning the installation 

of natural gas infrastructure lines and a new roadway as shown on Exhibit “B” during the 

development of the Land that will benefit the present and future residents of the City and 

the County. 

 

The City is authorized by §380.001, et seq., Texas Local Government Code, to 

promote state and local economic development and to stimulate business and commercial 

activity within the City and surrounding area. The City has determined that a substantial 

economic benefit and the creation of new opportunities of employment will accrue to the 

City and the surrounding area if the Project is successfully developed. 

 

Therefore, for and in consideration of good and valuable consideration, the receipt 

and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, including the agreements set forth 

below, the City and J & H agree as follows: 

 



 

 2 

ARTICLE 1 

DEFINITIONS 

 

1.1 Definitions.  Unless the context or the usage of the particular word or phrase 

requires a different interpretation, in addition to terms defined elsewhere herein, the 

following terms and phrases shall have the meanings indicated below: 

 

Agreement:  This Development Agreement between the City of Navasota, Texas 

and J & H. 

 

Applicable Fees:  The fees and charges to be paid by J & H to the City with respect 

to the permits, utility extensions, services, development of the Land, and other fees as 

provided for in this Agreement. 

 

Applicable Rules:  The City ordinances, codes, rules, regulations and official 

policies in effect as of the Vesting Date, which will be applicable to the development of the 

Land. 

 

City:  The City of Navasota, Texas, a Texas home rule city. 

 

City Manager:  The City Manager of the City of Navasota, Texas, or the City 

Manager’s designee. 

 

City Council:  The City Council of the City of Navasota, Texas. 

 

City Engineer:  The Engineer for the City of Navasota, Texas. 

 

County:  Grimes County, Texas. 

 

Term:  The term of this Agreement, commencing on the Effective Date and 

continuing for five (5) years thereafter. 

 

Land:  Approximately 102.4197 acres of land, currently situated in the city limits of 

the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. The Land is that tract or parcel of land 

described by metes and bounds in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein for 

all purposes. 

 

J & H:  J & H Navasota Development, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, and 

its successors and assigns under this Agreement. 

 

Project:  The Land, and existing and future improvements thereto, as it will be 

developed under this Agreement, and the other improvements to be constructed and 

obligations to be performed by J & H pursuant to this Agreement such as the construction 

of Pecan Lakes Drive as shown on Exhibit “B”. 

 



 

 3 

Street System: shall mean the street system, including paved streets and roads, 

entrance streets, arterial streets, main feeder streets and internal streets that will serve the 

Land. 

 

Vesting Date:  shall be the same date as the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE 2 

PUBLIC BENEFITS, INFRASTRUCTURE AND AMENITIES 

 

2.1  Orderly Growth.  The City desires that development within its corporate boundaries 

and extraterritorial jurisdiction occur in an orderly manner in order to protect the health, 

safety and welfare of its present and future citizens, protect property values and provide for 

the growth of the City's tax base.  This Agreement will benefit the City by facilitating the 

planned development of an appropriate area of the City's corporate boundaries, which will 

allow for thoughtful and high-quality planning, the development of necessary utility 

facilities and other infrastructure, the provision of other municipal services, and the 

development of a balanced community that includes residential uses. 

 

2.2 Environmental Protection.  J & H will implement compliance with all federal, state 

and local natural resource laws and regulations, to the extent applicable, in the development 

and improvement of the Land. 

 
ARTICLE 3 

WATER, WASTEWATER AND GAS 
 
3.1  Extension of Public Utilities to the Land. J & H desires to have the City’s water, 

wastewater and gas utility systems serve the Land.  The City has sufficient water, 

wastewater and gas utility capacity, and the City hereby agrees to provide water, 

wastewater and gas utility service to the Land, upon J & H’S extension of the water, 

wastewater and gas utility systems to the Land in accordance with the Applicable Rules. 

 

3.2 Utility Improvements by J & H.  J & H shall be responsible for the design, 

engineering, construction and all other costs related to the provision of water, wastewater 

and gas utility services to or within the boundaries of the Land, except for the materials and 

fusion/welding services to be provided by the City pursuant to Section 3.3 of this 

Agreement. J & H shall provide all necessary gas utility infrastructure and lines, including 

but not limited to gas utility taps, so that each lot on the Land may be provided gas utility 

service by the City. The gas utility infrastructure and lines shall include “looping the mains 

to Fairway Drive along the proposed Pecan Lakes Drive and HWY 105 E” in accordance 

with any and all specifications required by the City. All design, engineering and 

construction shall be performed by J & H and be in accordance with the Applicable Rules 

and according to plans approved by the City. J & H warrants that all work under this 

Agreement will be free from faulty materials and improper workmanship, except from 

proper and usual wear, and agrees to replace, repair or re-execute, without cost to the City, 

all work found to be defective, improper or imperfect, and make good all damage caused to 

other work or materials due to such required replacement, repair or re-execution. This 

warranty shall cover a period of one (1) year from the date of the City issues a “Certificate 



 

 4 

of Acceptance” for all infrastructure, except that this warranty shall cover a period of three 

(3) years for any and all gas utility infrastructure accepted by the City related to Phase III 

of the Pecan Lakes Subdivision, including but not limited to the gas utility infrastructure 

“looping the mains to Fairway Drive along the proposed Pecan Lakes Drive and HWY 105 

E”. 

 

3.3 City’s Obligation for Infrastructure. The City shall provide the materials required 

for looping the gas main, as well as providing the fusion/welding of the gas main, and a 

grant pursuant to Chapter 380, Texas Local Government Code, to J & H in a lump sum 

payment of Twelve Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($12,000.00) to reimburse J & H for the 

engineering and construction cost associated with looping the gas main. J & H intends to 

sell lots to be used by purchasers for the construction of residential dwellings. The formula 

used to calculate J & H’s additional grants under this Agreement shall be based on the 

number of homes connected to the City’s gas utility and shall be calculated as follows: 

Upon the request of a homeowner that gas service be provided for any such residential 

dwelling upon a lot within the boundaries of the Land, the City shall pay to J & H Four 

Hundred Dollars and No/100 ($400.00), per residential dwelling, in the form of a grant 

pursuant to Chapter 380, Texas Local Government Code, within thirty (30) days after gas 

service is provided to the residential dwelling. The total amount of grants paid to J & H for 

all residential dwellings served pursuant to this Section 3.3 shall not exceed Seventy-Three 

Thousand Two Hundred Dollars and No/100 ($73,200.00). Payments under this provision 

shall be made only to J & H, or any other party that, by written instrument, expressly 

assumes the obligations imposed on J & H by this Agreement, and in no event shall any 

payment be made to any party who purchases a lot or lots within the boundaries of the 

Land without also expressly assuming the obligations imposed herein. Notwithstanding 

anything contained herein to the contrary, no payments shall be made to J & H until Pecan 

Lakes Drive is constructed as shown on Exhibit “B” and in accordance with the Applicable 

Rules.  

 
ARTICLE 4 

STREETS AND ROADS; LIGHTING; DRAINAGE  

AND STORM WATER CONTROL IMPROVEMENTS 

 

4.1 Street System. The street system serving and situated within the Land shall be 

constructed as shown on the final plat of the Land. J & H shall also construct Pecan Lakes 

Drive to connect the Land to SH 105 as shown on Exhibit “B”. The street system and 

Pecan Lakes Drive shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the standards 

contained in the Applicable Rules. Upon J & H’s dedication of the street improvements to 

the City, and express written acceptance of the street improvements by the City, the City 

shall be responsible for the maintenance of the street improvements, except to the extent 

any maintenance or repairs are covered by fiscal security required by Applicable Rules. 

4.2 Street Lighting. J & H shall install street lighting in the Project in accordance with 

Applicable Rules. 

 

4.3 Drainage and Storm Water Control Improvements.  J & H, its successors and/or 

assigns will construct the Drainage and Storm Water Control Improvements on the Land in 



 

 5 

accordance with Applicable Rules. J & H will maintain and operate all storm water and 

other drainage facilities that are not dedicated to and accepted by the City, including all 

drainage easements within the Land. 

 

 

ARTICLE 5 

PLATS, BUILDING CODES, BUILDING PERMITS, INSPECTION 

 

5.1 Plats.  All development shall be governed by preliminary and final plats for portions 

of the Land that are approved, from time to time, by the City in accordance with this 

Agreement and the Applicable Rules.   

 

5.2 Jurisdiction.  City shall have exclusive jurisdiction over the review and approval of 

preliminary plats and final plats, which review and approvals shall be performed in 

accordance with the Applicable Rules and this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement is 

intended to delegate or impair the performance by the City of its governmental functions. 

 

5.3 Procedures.  Preliminary plats and final plats shall be reviewed in accordance with 

the procedures set forth in the Applicable Rules. 

 

5.4 Construction Inspection.  The City shall have the right, from time to time, to inspect 

the construction of any public improvements for the purpose of identifying any 

improvements that are being constructed in violation of the Applicable Rules, Building 

Code and/or this Agreement.  All inspections shall be performed by an inspector selected 

by the City and all inspection results shall be in writing. J & H shall be responsible for 

payment of the inspection fees as provided for in the Applicable Rules. 

 

ARTICLE 6 

TAX LEVY; OBLIGATIONS NOT DEBT 

 

In order to provide for the payment of its obligations under this Agreement, the City will, if 

necessary, levy, within the limits prescribed by law, for the current year and each 

succeeding year thereafter, while its obligations under this Agreement remain in effect, an 

ad valorem tax upon all taxable property within the City sufficient to pay the City’s 

obligations under this Agreement, including the payment of interest and to create and 

provide for a sinking fund of not less than two percent (2%) of the principal amount of the 

City’s obligations under this Agreement, with full allowance being made for tax 

delinquencies and the costs of tax collection, and such taxes, when collected shall be 

applied to the payment of the City’s obligations under this Agreement and to no other 

purpose. The City hereby finds and declares that the existing and available taxing authority 

of the City for such purposes is adequate to permit a legally sufficient tax. The City 

acknowledges and agree that the obligations created by this Agreement shall not constitute 

“debt” and shall be paid out of current revenues of the City; or in the alternative, shall be 

paid out of a specified fund, said fund being in the immediate control of the City and being 

in an amount sufficient to satisfy the City’s obligations created herein; or further in the 

alternative, that sufficient provision and tax levy has been made by the party to create an 



 

 6 

interest and sinking fund adequate to pay at least 2% of the principal and any interest due 

each year. 

 

 

ARTICLE 7 

LAND DEVELOPMENT 

 

7.1 Governing Regulations.  Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the City 

ordinances, codes, rules, regulations and official policies applicable to the development of 

the Land during the term of this Agreement will be those City ordinances, building and 

construction codes, other codes, rules, regulations and official policies (collectively, 

"Applicable Rules") in force and as interpreted by the City by policy or practice on the 

Vesting Date, as defined in Section 1.1 above.  No Applicable Rules adopted after the 

Vesting Date, whether by means of an ordinance, initiative, referendum, resolution, policy, 

order, or otherwise, are or will be applicable to the Project, unless otherwise provided in 

this Agreement or applicable state law, or the application is agreed to, in writing, by J & H 

and the City. For the term of this Agreement, the development and use of the Land will be 

controlled by the terms of this Agreement and the Applicable Rules.  If there is any conflict 

between the Applicable Rules and the terms of this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement 

will control. 

 

ARTICLE 8 

FEES; FISCAL SECURITY 

 

8.1 Fees. J & H agrees to timely pay any and all fees, costs, payments, taxes, expenses, 

deposits and plan review/inspection fees as set forth in the Applicable Rules, this 

Agreement, or otherwise required by law.  

ARTICLE 9 

TERM, AUTHORITY AND VESTING OF RIGHTS 

 

9.1 Term. 

 

9.1.1 Term.  The term of this Agreement will commence on the Effective Date 

and continue for five (5) years thereafter ("Term"), unless sooner terminated 

under this Agreement.  After the Term, the Agreement may be extended by 

mutual agreement of the Parties. 

 

9.1.2 Extensions. The Parties agree that neither the City nor J & H is under any 

obligation to renew this Agreement after the Term. 

 

9.1.3 Expiration.  After the Term and any extension, this Agreement will be of no 

further force and effect, except that termination will not affect any right or 



 

 7 

obligation arising from any provision surviving this Agreement as provided 

herein. 

 

9.1.4 Termination or Amendment.  This Agreement may be terminated or 

amended as to the Land at any time by mutual written consent of the City 

and J & H or may be terminated or amended only as to a portion of the Land 

by the mutual written consent of the City and owners of only the portion of 

the Land affected by the amendment or termination. 

 

9.2 Authority.  This Agreement is entered under the statutory authority of Chapter 51, 

Chapter 212, Subchapter G, Section 212.171 et seq., and Chapter 380, Texas Local 

Government Code.  The Parties intend that this Agreement authorize certain land uses and 

development on the Land; provide for the development plans and regulations for the Land; 

and provide exceptions to certain ordinances and regulations; and provide other terms and 

consideration.  

 

9.3 Vesting of Rights.  As of the Vesting Date, J & H has initiated the subdivision and 

development permit process for the Project. The City agrees that, in accordance with 

Chapter 245, Texas Local Government Code, the City will consider the approval of any 

further approvals necessary for the Project based solely on the Applicable Rules, as may be 

modified by this Agreement. Further, the City agrees that, upon approval of this 

Agreement, J & H has vested authority to develop the Land in accordance with the 

Applicable Rules, as modified by any exceptions contained in this Agreement.   

 

9.4 Equivalent Substitute Obligation.  If either Party is unable to meet an obligation 

under this Agreement due to a court order invalidating all or a portion of this Agreement, 

preemptive state or federal law, an imminent and bona fide threat to public safety that 

prevents performance or requires different performance, changed circumstances or 

subsequent conditions that would legally excuse performance under this Agreement, or any 

other reason beyond the Party's reasonable and practical control, the Parties will cooperate 

to revise this Agreement to provide for an equivalent substitute right or obligation as 

similar in terms to the illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision as is possible and is legal, 

valid and enforceable, or other additional or modified rights or obligations that will most 

nearly preserve each Party's overall contractual benefit under this Agreement.  

 

9.5 Cooperation. The City and J & H each agree to execute such further documents or 

instruments as may be necessary to evidence their agreements hereunder. 

 

9.6 Indemnification; Litigation.  J & H AGREES TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD 

CITY, ITS ELECTED OFFICIALS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS AND 

VOLUNTEERS HARMLESS AGAINST ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, LAWSUITS, 

JUDGMENTS, COSTS, LIENS, LOSSES, EXPENSES, FEES (INCLUDING 

ATTORNEY’S FEES AND COSTS OF DEFENSE), PROCEEDINGS, ACTIONS, 

DEMANDS, CAUSES OF ACTION, LIABILITY AND SUITS OF ANY KIND AND 

NATURE, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PERSONAL INJURY 

(INCLUDING DEATH), PROPERTY DAMAGE, OR OTHER HARM FOR WHICH 



 

 8 

RECOVERY OF DAMAGES IS SOUGHT THAT MAY ARISE OUT OF OR BE 

OCCASIONED OR CAUSED BY ANY WILLFUL MISCONDUCT OR 

NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR, OR OMISSION OF J & H, ANY AGENT, OFFICER, 

DIRECTOR, REPRESENTATIVE, AGENT OR EMPLOYEE OF J & H, AND 

THEIR RESPECTIVE OFFICERS, AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, DIRECTORS AND 

REPRESENTATIVES WHILE IN THE EXERCISE OF PERFORMANCE OF THE 

RIGHTS OR DUTIES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. THE INDEMNITY 

PROVIDED FOR IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL NOT APPLY TO ANY 

LIABILITY RESULTING FROM THE WILLFUL MISCONDUCT OR GROSS 

NEGLIGENCE OF CITY, ITS ELECTED OFFICIALS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, 

AGENTS OR VOLUNTEERS, IN INSTANCES WHERE SUCH GROSS 

NEGLIGENCE CAUSES PERSONAL INJURY, DEATH, OR PROPERTY 

DAMAGE. IN THE EVENT J & H AND CITY ARE FOUND JOINTLY LIABLE 

BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION, LIABILITY SHALL BE 

APPORTIONED COMPARATIVELY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF 

THE STATE OF TEXAS, WITHOUT, HOWEVER, WAIVING ANY 

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY AVAILABLE TO CITY UNDER TEXAS LAW 

AND WITHOUT WAIVING ANY DEFENSES OF THE PARTIES UNDER TEXAS 

LAW. 

 

J & H shall advise CITY in writing within 24 hours of any claim or demand against CITY 

or J & H known to J & H related to or arising out of J & H’s activities under this 

Agreement. 

 

The provisions of this Agreement are solely for the benefit of the parties hereto and not 

intended to create or grant any rights, contractual or otherwise, to any other person or 

entity. In the event of any third party lawsuit or other claim relating to the validity of this 

Agreement or any actions taken by the Parties hereunder or in connection herewith, J & H 

and the City agree to cooperate in the defense of such suit or claim, and to use their 

respective best efforts to resolve the suit or claim without diminution of their respective 

rights and obligations under this Agreement.  The filing of any third party lawsuit relating 

to this Agreement or the development of the Project will not delay, stop or otherwise affect 

the development of the Project or the City's processing or issuance of any approvals for the 

Project, unless otherwise required by a court of competent jurisdiction.  

 

ARTICLE 10 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

10.1 Assignment; Binding Effect.    

 

10.1.1 This Agreement, and the rights and obligations of J & H hereunder, may be 

assigned by J & H to a subsequent purchaser of all or a portion of the Land 

within the Project provided that the assignee assumes all of the obligations 

of the Agreement.  Any assignment must be in writing, specifically describe 

the property in question, set forth the assigned rights and obligations and be 

executed by the proposed assignee.  A copy of the assignment document 



 

 9 

must be delivered to the City.  Upon any such assignment, J & H will be 

released of any further obligations under this Agreement as to the property 

sold and obligations assigned. Any attempted assignment of this Agreement, 

or any rights and obligations hereunder, that fails to comply with all 

applicable requirements of this Article 10 and this Agreement shall be void 

and of no effect. 

 

10.1.2 If J & H assigns its rights and obligations hereunder as to a portion of the 

Project, then the rights and obligations of any assignee and J & H will be 

severable, and J & H will not be liable for the nonperformance of the 

assignee and vice-versa.  In the case of nonperformance by one assignee, the 

City may pursue all remedies against that nonperforming assignee, but will 

not unreasonably impede development activities of any performing assignee 

as a result of that nonperformance. 

 

10.1.3 The provisions of this Agreement will be binding upon, and inure to the 

benefit of the Parties, and their respective successors and assigns.  This 

Agreement will not, however, be binding upon, or create any encumbrance 

to title as to, any ultimate consumer who purchases a lot or lots within the 

boundaries of the Land without also expressly assuming the obligations 

imposed herein. 

 

10.2 Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is illegal, invalid, or 

unenforceable, under present or future laws, it is the intention of the Parties that the 

remainder of this Agreement not be affected, and, in lieu of each illegal, invalid, or 

unenforceable provision, that a provision be added to this Agreement which is legal, valid, 

and enforceable and is as similar in terms to the illegal, invalid or enforceable provision as 

is possible. 

 

10.3 Applicable Law and Venue.  The interpretation, performance, enforcement and 

validity of this Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Texas.  Exclusive venue 

will be in a court of appropriate jurisdiction in Grimes County, Texas. 

 

10.4 No Third Party Beneficiary.  This Agreement is not intended, nor will it be 

construed, to create any third-party beneficiary rights in any person or entity who is not a 

Party, unless expressly otherwise provided. 

 

10.5 Mortgagee Protection.  This Agreement will not affect the right of J & H to 

encumber all or any portion of the Land by mortgage, deed of trust or other instrument to 

secure financing for the Project.  The City agrees as follows: 

 

10.5.1 Neither entering into this Agreement, nor any breach of this Agreement, will 

affect any lien upon all or any portion of the Land. 

 

10.5.2 The City will, upon written request of a Lender given in compliance with 

Section 10.16, provide the Lender with a copy of any written notice of 



 

 10 

default given to J & H under this Agreement within ten (10) days of the date 

such notice is given to J & H. 

 

10.5.3 In the event of default by J & H under this Agreement, a Lender may, but 

will not be obligated to, cure any default during any cure period extended to 

J & H, either under this Agreement or under the notice of default. 

 

10.5.4 Any Lender who comes into possession of any portion of the Land by 

foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure will take such property subject to 

the terms of this Agreement.  No Lender will be liable for any defaults or 

monetary obligations of J & H arising prior to the Lender’s acquisition of 

title, but a Lender will not be entitled to obtain any permits or approvals 

with respect to that property until all delinquent fees and other obligations of 

J & H under this Agreement that relate to the property in question have been 

paid or performed. 

 

10.6 Certificate of Compliance.  Within thirty (30) days of written request by either 

Party given accordance with Section 10.16, the other Party will execute and deliver to the 

requesting Party a statement certifying that: (a) this Agreement is unmodified and in full 

force and effect or, if there have been modifications, that this Agreement is in full force and 

effect as modified and stating the date and nature of each modification; (b) there are no 

current uncured defaults under this Agreement, or specifying the date and nature of each 

default; and (c) any other information that may be reasonably requested.  A Party's failure 

to deliver a requested certification within this 30-day period will conclusively be deemed to 

constitute a confirmation that this Agreement is in full force without modification, and that 

there are no uncured defaults on the part of the requesting Party.  The City Manager will be 

authorized to execute any requested certificate on behalf of the City. 

 

10.7 Default.  If either Party defaults in its obligations under this Agreement, the other 

Party must, prior to exercising a remedy available to that Party due to the default, give 

written notice to the defaulting Party, specifying the nature of the alleged default and the 

manner in which it can be satisfactorily cured, and extend to the defaulting Party at least 

thirty (30) days from receipt of the notice to cure the default.  If the nature of the default is 

such that it cannot reasonably be cured within the 30-day period, the commencement of the 

cure within the 30-day period and the diligent prosecution of the cure to completion will be 

deemed a cure within the cure period. 

 

10.8 Remedies for Default.   If either Party defaults under this Agreement and fails to 

cure the default within the applicable cure period, the non-defaulting Party will have all 

rights and remedies available under this Agreement or applicable law, including the right to 

institute legal action to cure any default, to enjoin any threatened or attempted violation of 

this Agreement or to enforce the defaulting Party’s obligations under this Agreement by 

specific performance or writ of mandamus, or to terminate this Agreement.  All remedies 

available to a Party will be cumulative and the pursuit of one remedy will not constitute an 

election of remedies or a waiver of the right to pursue any other available remedy.  

 



 

 11 

10.9 Reservation of Rights.  To the extent not inconsistent with this Agreement, each 

Party reserves all rights, privileges, and immunities under applicable laws. However, 

notwithstanding any other provision herein, J & H hereby voluntarily elects to waive any 

and all rights granted to J & H under the Private Real Property Right Preservation Act, 

Texas Government Code, Chapter 2007, as amended. 

 

10.10 Attorneys Fees.  The prevailing Party in any dispute under this Agreement will be 

entitled to recover from the non-prevailing Party its reasonable attorney’s fees, expenses 

and court costs in connection with any original action, any appeals, and any post-judgment 

proceedings to collect or enforce a judgment. 

 

10.11 Waiver.  Any failure by a Party to insist upon strict performance by the other Party 

of any provision of this Agreement will not, regardless of the length of time during which 

that failure continues, be deemed a waiver of that Party’s right insist upon strict compliance 

with all terms of this Agreement.  In order to be effective as to a Party, any waiver of 

default under this Agreement must be in writing, and a written waiver will only be effective 

as to the specific default and as to the specific period of time set forth in the written waiver.  

A written waiver will not constitute a waiver of any subsequent default, or of the right to 

require performance of the same or any other provision of this Agreement in the future.  

 

10.12 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the Parties, 

and there are no other agreements or promises, oral or written, between the Parties 

regarding the subject matter of this Agreement.  This Agreement may be amended only by 

written agreement signed by the Parties.  

 

10.13 Exhibits, Headings, Construction and Counterparts.  All exhibits attached to this 

Agreement are incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement for all purposes.  The 

paragraph headings contained in this Agreement are for convenience only and do not 

enlarge or limit the scope or meaning of the paragraphs.  Wherever appropriate, words of 

the masculine gender may include the feminine or neuter, and the singular may include the 

plural, and vice-versa.  Each of the Parties has been actively and equally involved in the 

negotiation of this Agreement.  Accordingly, the rule of construction that any ambiguities 

are to be resolved against the drafting Party will not be employed in interpreting this 

Agreement or its exhibits.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, each of which will be deemed to be an original, and all of which will together 

constitute the same instrument.  This Agreement will become effective only when one or 

more counterparts, individually or taken together, bear the signatures of all of the Parties. 

 

10.14 Time.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement.  In computing the number of days 

for purposes of this Agreement, all days will be counted, including Saturdays, Sundays and 

legal holidays; however, if the final day of any time period falls on a Saturday, Sunday or 

legal holiday, then the final day will be deemed to be the next day that is not a Saturday, 

Sunday or legal holiday. 

 

10.15 Authority for Execution.  The City certifies, represents, and warrants that the 

execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized and that this Agreement has been 



 

 12 

approved in conformity with City ordinances and other applicable legal requirements.  J & 

H certifies, represents, and warrants that the execution of this Agreement is duly authorized 

in conformity with its bylaws and other legal requirements. 

 

10.16 Notices.  Any notices under this Agreement may be sent by hand delivery, facsimile 

(with confirmation of delivery) or certified mail, return receipt requested, to the Parties at 

the following addresses or as such addresses may be changed from time to time by written 

notice to the other Parties: 

 

City:   Brad Stafford, City Manager 

City of Navasota 

200 E. McAlpine 

Navasota, Texas 77868-3028 

 Telephone: (936) 825-6408 

 Facsimile:  (936) 825-2403 

 bstafford@navasotatx.gov 

 

Copy to:  Cary L. Bovey, Attorney at Law 

Bovey & Cochran, PLLC 

2251 Double Creek Dr., Suite 204 

Round Rock, TX 78664 

(512) 904-9441 

 (512) 904-9445 Fax 

 cary@boveycochran.com 

 

 

J & H:   J & H Navasota Development, LLC 

c/o James Hassell 

7199 Hassell Lane, Navasota 77868 

(713) 254-2571 

Jameshassell2013@gmail.com 

 

Copy to:  _____________________________ 

_____________________________ 

_____________________________ 

_____________________________ 

 

Either City or J & H may change its mailing address at any time by giving written 

notice of such change to the other in the manner provided herein at least ten (10) days prior 

to the date such change is effected.  All notices under this Agreement will be deemed given 

on the earlier of the date personal delivery is affected or on the delivery date or attempted 

delivery date shown on the return receipt or facsimile confirmation. 

 

10.17. Exhibits.  The following exhibits are attached to this Agreement, and made a part 

hereof for all purposes: 

 



 

 13 

Exhibit A - Metes and Bounds Description of the Land 

 Exhibit B - Pecan Lakes Drive Preliminary Plans 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Parties have executed this Agreement 

on the dates indicated below, to be effective on the date the last party signs. 

 

CITY OF NAVASOTA 

 

 

By:        

Hon. Bert Miller, Mayor 

 

Date:        

 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 

    § 

COUNTY OF GRIMES § 

 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ______ day of 

______________, 2021, by Bert Miller, the Mayor of the City Navasota, a Texas home-

rule city, on behalf of the City. 

 

 

       

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

(NOTARY SEAL) 



 

 14 

J & H Navasota Development, LLC 
 
 
 
By:        
Name:        
Title:        
Date:        
 

 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 

    § 
COUNTY OF GRIMES § 

 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of 

_______________, 2021, by James Hassell, President of J & H Navasota Development, 
LLC a Texas limited liability company, on behalf of said limited liability company. 
 

       
Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

(NOTARY SEAL) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 



 

  

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Metes and Bounds Description of the Land 



Exhibit "A"











E

D

G

E

 
O

F

 
A

S

P

H

.

S

H

 
1

0

5

 
(
1

2

0

'
 
R

.
O

.
W

.
 
A

V

E

R

A

G

E

)

MBC

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

PECAN LAKES DRIVE
Pecan Lakes Estate- Jim Hassell

Navasota, Texas 778868

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 69%%D03'39" E - 384.72'

AutoCAD SHX Text
211.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT&T

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF ASPH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITE STRIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITE STRIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
YELLOW STRIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30" METAL PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL - 210.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL -210.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89%%D52'08" W - 1,422.78'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIRDIE COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(60' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK   6

AutoCAD SHX Text
RES. "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 01%%D20'33" E  -  83.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 01%%D20'33" W - 1,032.53'

AutoCAD SHX Text
POLE BARN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 STORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPH. & GRAVEL DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 - 12" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POND

AutoCAD SHX Text
POND

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNRESTRICTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
RES. "B"

AutoCAD SHX Text
RES. "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PECAN LAKES DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(60' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAND TRAP LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(60' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAND TRAP LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(60' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PECAN LAKES ESTATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 3, SECT. 1 SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK   1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.9991 AC. REMAINDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF A CALL 1.2275 AC. TRACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS DESCRIBED IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOL. 1676, PG. 324 (R.P.R.G.C.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.7120 AC. REMAINDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF A CALL 27.49 AC. TRACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
KNOWN AS TRACT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS DESCRIBED IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOL. 1684, PG. 451 (R.P.R.G.C.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL 9.9 AC. TRACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS DESCRIBED IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOL. 1061, PG. 421 (R.P.R.G.C.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5231 AC. REMAINDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF A CALL 26.469 AC. TRACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS DESCRIBED IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOL. 1303, PG. 413 (R.P.R.G.C.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.6362 AC. REMAINDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF A CALL 26.469 AC. TRACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS DESCRIBED IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOL. 1247, PG. 579 (R.P.R.G.C.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
47.0708 AC. TRACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING A COMBINATION OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
A 4.5231 AC. TRACT,

AutoCAD SHX Text
A 4.6362 AC. TRACT,

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND A 37.9115 AC. TRACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN HEREON

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESERVE "C"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00%%D09'09" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 69%%D33'41" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 69%%D07'32" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.37'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89%%D48'38" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 01%%D20'33" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.37'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 01%%D20'33" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.43'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89%%D48'38" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
196.78'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 01%%D20'33" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
113.41'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89%%D48'38" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
89.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89%%D48'38" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
225.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89%%D48'38" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
69.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89%%D48'38" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
65.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89%%D48'38" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
65.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89%%D48'38" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
65.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89%%D48'38" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00%%D07'52" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
91.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00%%D07'52" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
126.45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00%%D07'52" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
126.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00%%D07'52" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
126.58'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00%%D07'52" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
107.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00%%D07'52" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
163.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89%%D52'08" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89%%D52'08" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
278.85'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89%%D52'08" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89%%D52'08" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89%%D52'08" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89%%D52'08" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
170.14'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 69%%D03'49" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
211.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89%%D52'08" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
191.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 69%%D03'27" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
173.44'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PECAN LAKES DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(60' R.O.W.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RES. "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 01%%D20'33" W - 1,059.25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
RES. "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1:40

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AND DESIGN SERVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SGH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAFTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAN. 14, 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOCUMENT WAS AUTHORIZED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAUL E. MALEK, P.E. 82860 ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
JANUARY 14, 2021.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE SEAL APPEARING ON THIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
7984 HWY. 6  NAVASOTA, TX 77868  Ph. (936) 825-1603  Fax (936) 825-1624

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANAGEMENT 

shomeyer
Typewritten Text

shomeyer
Typewritten Text

shomeyer
Typewritten Text
"EXHIBIT B"



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 17. AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2021
 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Reconvene in open session.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The time is _________p.m.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 18. AGENDA DATE: May 10, 2021
 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on Executive Session
Item, Section 551.087, Texas Government Code, regarding a
Development Agreement with J & H Navasota Development LLC.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
J&H Navasota Development, LLC. requests an economic
development incentive for construction of a secondary entrance
into to Pecan Lakes Estates Subdivision by constructing Pecan
Lakes Drive to HWY 105 W., and staff asked developer to install
water and gas mains in the right-of-way to loop the utilities. The
roadway and mains will improve the opportunity for business
development in the area zoned for business.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
The Development agreement would pay the developer $12,000 to
loop the natural gas main from Pecan Lakes Estates Phase 3 along
the proposed Pecan Lakes Drive and HWY 105 E to Fairway Drive.
As well as $400 per customer gas tie in requests for the 183 lots
within Pecan Lakes Estates Phase 3 totaling $73,200. The
developer has also agreed to extend the gas infrastructure
warranty to three years from the required one year term following
City Council acceptance.
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends taking action on the proposed Development
Agreement with J&H Navasota Development, LLC.

Lupe Diosdado, Development Services
Director



 

ATTACHMENTS:



CITY OF NAVASOTA
MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

1. PLANNING CALENDAR

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1620235118x_at.pdf


 
AGENDA PLANNING CALENDAR 

 
 

MAY 10, 2021 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 04/26/2021 

1. Called to order 
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Remarks of visitors 
4. Staff Report: (a) Capital Improvements Project update; (b) Introduce the Artist in Residency;  
    (c) Recognize staff for years of services; (d) First Responders Day; (e) Update on  
    Transportation Alternatives Program; (f) Update on Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan;  
    (g) Proclamation for Peace Officer Week; (h) Board and Commission update; and (i) Reports  
    from staff and City Council 
5. Canvass the May 1, 2021 election results 
6. Issue Certificate of Election to newly elected members, Statement of Officer and administer  
    Oath of Office  
7. Elect a Mayor 
8. Elect a Mayor Pro-Tem 
9. Update on Capstone project from the Bush School 
10.Presentation by Tim Gregg – Celebrating Navasota 
11.Change Order No. 2 – RR Street storm sewer project 
12.1st reading of Ordinance No. 962-21, amending library fees 
13.Appointments to Boards and Commissions 
14.Resolution No. 690-21, opposing Senate Bill 10 
15.Consent agenda: (a) Minutes from the month April 2021; and (b) Expenditures for the  
     month of April 2021 
16. Executive Session: As permitted by Section 551.087, Texas Government Code, for the  
      purpose of deliberation regarding economic development negotiations with J & H Navasota  
      Development, LLC regarding a potential Development Agreement 
17.  Reconvene in open session 
18.  Action on Executive Session 
19. Adjourn 

 
 

MAY 18, 2021 – SPECIAL MEETING – 5:30 P.M. 

1. Called to order 
2. Townhall meeting on Transportation Alternatives Program and Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan 
3. Adjourn 

 
 

MAY 21, 2021 – SPECIAL MEETING – 9:00-10:00 A.M. – NAVASOTA CENTER 

1. Called to order 
2. Volunteer Appreciation Ceremony for Boards and Commissions 
3. Adjourn 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

MAY 24, 2021 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 05/10/2021 

1. Called to order 
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Remarks of visitors 
4. Staff Report: (a) Results from 1st Responders event; (b) Board and Commission update; and  
    (c) Reports from staff and City Council 
5. Approval of Strategic Plan for FY 2021-2022 
6. RFP for trash service 
7. 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 962-21, amending library fees 
8. Adjourn 

 


	Regular Meeting
	Agenda Item No.  -  City Manager's Message and Statements and Priorities
	 City Manager's Message
	 Statements and Priorities

	Agenda Item No. 4 -  Staff Report:
(a) Capital Improvement Project report;
(b) Introduction of the Artists in Residence;
(c) Recognize staff for Years of Service;
(d) First Responders Day;
(e) Update on Transportation Alternatives Program;
(f) Update on Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan;
(g) Proclamation for Peace Officer Week;
(h) Board and Commission update; and
(i) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community interests, including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials, public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has arisen after the posting of the agenda.
	 Years of Service Awards
	 Proclamation

	Agenda Item No. 5 -  Consideration and possible action on canvassing the returns for the May 1, 2021 City Election.
Consideraci&oacute;n y posible acci&oacute;n sobre la b&uacute;squeda de los retornos para las elecciones municipales del 1 de mayo de 2021.
	 Unofficial Election Results

	Agenda Item No. 6 -  Consideration and possible action on qualifying newly elected Council members to Positions 4 and 5 and administer the Oaths of Office.
Consideraci&oacute;n y posible acci&oacute;n sobre la calificaci&oacute;n de los miembros reci&eacute;n elegidos del Consejo a los Puestos 4 y 5 y administrar los Juramentos del Cargo.
	 Bert Miller's Election Forms
	 Grant Holt's Election Forms

	Agenda Item No. 7 -  Consideration and possible action on election of a Council member to serve as Mayor.
	Agenda Item No. 8 -  Consideration and possible action on election of a Council member to serve as Mayor Pro-Tem.
	Agenda Item No. 9 -  Presentation of the Capstone Project from the Bush School regarding capital improvements over the past 15 years.
	Agenda Item No. 10 -  Presentation by Tim Gregg on Celebrating Navasota.
	Agenda Item No. 11 -  Consideration and possible action on Change Order No. 2 for the Railroad Street 2016 Flood CDBG - Disaster Recovery Grant.
	 Change Order No. 2

	Agenda Item No. 12 -  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 962-21, amending Appendix A, Article A12.000, Public Library of the Code of Ordinances, of the City of Navasota, Texas regarding fee schedules.
	 Ordinance No. 962-21
	 Bag Pricing
	 Farmers Market Bag
	 Art Camp
	 Day Camp Proposal
	 Registration Form

	Agenda Item No. 13 -  Consideration and possible action on appointments to boards and commissions.
	 Application

	Agenda Item No. 14 -  Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 690-21, expressing opposition to the proposed Senate Bill 10 and similar Legislation in the 87th Texas Legislature to restrict the ability of local governments to advocate for their communities.
	 Resolution No. 690-21

	Agenda Item No. 15 -  Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion and vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by the Mayor or City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of the regular agenda.
Consent Items are:
A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the month of April 2021; and
B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the month of April 2021;






	 Minutes - 04/12/2021
	 Minutes - 04/26/2021
	 Expenditures for April 2021

	Agenda Item No. 16 -  Executive Session: The City Council shall meet in Executive Session as permitted by Section 551.087, Texas Government Code, for the purpose of deliberation regarding economic development negotiations with J & H Navasota Development, LLC regarding a potential Development Agreement.
 
 
	 Development Agreement

	Agenda Item No. 17 -  Reconvene in open session.
	Agenda Item No. 18 -  Consideration and possible action on Executive Session Item, Section 551.087, Texas Government Code, regarding a  Development Agreement with J & H Navasota Development LLC.
	Agenda Item No. 19 -  1. Planning Calendar
	 Planning Calendar




